SAN ANTONIO FIELD TRIP

William E. Doolittle
Department of Geography and the Environment
The University of Texas at Austin

Topics to be covered

1. Importance of water for life in the Southwest
Acequia system (irrigation):
dam, canal, aqueduct, fields

2.  Spanish Institutions:
(a) missions (spread of Christianity)
(b) presidios (military and government)
(c) towns (civilian settlement)

3. Historic precedents and the contemporary cityscape.

Painting of San Antonio in 1836 by GeorgeNeIson
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8:30 a.m. Depart UT, corner of 23" Street and San Jacinto Street

10:00

10:40

10:45

10:55

11:00

11:20

11:25

Noon

12:15

1:30

1:45

1:50

2:10

2:30

Arrive at Espada Dam—Stop 1

Depart Espada Dam

Arrive at Ashley Street canal crossing—Stop 2
Depart Ashley Street stop

Arrive at Espada Aqueduct—Stop 3

Depart Espada Aqueduct

Arrive at Mission Espada—Stop 4

Depart Mission Espada

Arrive at Mission San José—Stop 5

Depart Mission San José

Arrive at the San Antonio city hall parking lot—Stop 6
Visit the Spanish Governor's Palace (We will enter as a
group, but once inside will take individual self-guided

tours.)

Walk around the Plaza de las Armas, San Fernando
Cathedral, and the Plaza de las Islas

Depart city hall parking lot

4:00 p.m. Arrive back at UT, corner of 23rd and San Jacinto
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Spanish Governor’'s Palace brochure (stop 6)

Presidio Captain’s House brochure

Presidio map drawn by Urrutia in 1767—from the British
Library, and an enlarged portion of Menchaca’s map
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Suggested additional readings
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From Adan Benavides, ed., The San Antonio River Valley: Notes for the Participants of the Gran Quivira Conference XX,
Goliad-San Antonio, Texas, 10-13 October 1991, pp. 4-5.

The San Antonio Missions Adan Benavides

The basic premises of the missionary enterprise on the northern reaches of Nueva Espafia are
well-known to even the casual observer of what is now the U.S. Southwest: the Spanish government
and the Hispanic church sought to convert the native peoples. At its simplest level, conversion was in
the view of the latter a religious experience; but to the former, it meant the acculturation of the New
World natives to the Spanish way of life. In practice, however, the goals of the two Hispanic
institutions were inseparable. On the frontier, the gobierno de indios was administered through
church clerics. In contemporary times, the positive and negative effects of the conversion process
have been brought into sharp relief as we approach 12 October 1992.

Between 1718 and 1731, five missions were established along the upper San Antonio River:
San Antonio de Valero ("The Alamo"), San José y San Miguel de Aguayo, Nuestra Sefiora de la
Purisima Concepcién, San Francisco de la Espada, and San Juan Capistrano. In the latter year, the
three last-named missions were removed from east Texas and, with their property and supplies,
reestablished along the San Antonio River. These changes followed the recommendations of the
Rivera inspection which streamlined the presidios along the frontier of New Spain. Franciscan friars
from the Apostolic Colleges of Querétaro and Zacatecas administered the Texas missions. Following
the expulsion of the Jesuits in 1767 from New Spain, the Querétaran Franciscans assumed
responsibility for the Jesuit missions in the northwestern interior provinces and thereby abandoned
the Texas field. Thus in 1773, the Zacatecan Franciscans assumed the jurisdiction of the five San
Antonio missions—four were added to the one of San José which they had had since 1721.

The proximity of the five San Antonio missions occurred because rivalry among the various
Coahuiltecan Indian bands prevented their congregation in fewer missions. In 1745, they were
described as being more than 200 tribes, speaking twenty different languages or dialects. A
Franciscan friar produced a confessional manual in Coahuiltecan for use in the missions (Mexico,
1760). The mission populations were never very extensive (see table 1). At their population
maximums, the Indians at a single San Antonio mission have been estimated at 200 to 350
individuals. In the early years, European diseases took their toll among the mission Indians in
epidemics (of smallpox and measles, for example) that also affected the Spanish village and presidio.
Following the 1770s, the mission populations were not significantly increased by neophytes.

In the early 1790s, however, descendants of older Indian converts (as well as other agregados)
acquired a share in the mission buildings and fields following the "secularization" of the missions. In
the latter part of the eighteenth century, secularization was an empire-wide attempt to lessen the
financial burden of the Spanish Crown, which significantly supported the missionary enterprise. In this
process, the diocesan or "secular® clergy assumed the administration of the former mission
congregations from the "regular” clergy—clergy like the Franciscan friars who followed specific rules
(regula) of a spiritual order. In Texas, secularization involved property and land grants which were
further legalized under the Mexican regime in 1824.

The missions were independent pueblos that included the mission compound (chapel, convento,
plaza, perimeter dwellings, workshops, and storerooms), fields irrigated by a dam and acequia
system, and a ranch of sizable proportions for loose livestock. During the nineteenth century, the
mission compounds deteriorated: stones from the walls were sold and used in newer constructions,
the chapels were sometimes used as livestock pens, and domes, roofs, and towers fell (except
Mission Concepcion's chapel, which has remained intact). In the twentieth century, the mission
compounds received extensive reconstruction by the WPA (especially Mission San Joseé),
maintenance by both the Catholic Church and the State of Texas, and, more recently, support from
the National Park Service. The latter has linked the four lower missions into a National Historical
Park. The chapels at all four of the missions, moreover, are now active churches and those of San
José and Espada are again administered by the Franciscan Order.
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Table 3.7, Pdpulaﬁon of Texas Misstons, 1731-1774.

Places and Dates of Existence [ 1731 | 1740] 1750 1760 | 1770
. or Bstablishment | 1739 | 1749 | 1759| 1769| 1774
M. 3. A de Valero 1718 | 184| 311| 28| 2/5| 126
M. Purfsima Concepcién 1731 | 120| 207 | 247{ 207 178
M. San José 1720 49 220 2811 350 | *150
M. San Juan Capistrano 1731 | 66| 163| 2651 203| 198
M. S. Ii. de Ia Espada 1731 | 50| 204| 200] 207| 174
- M. Espiritu Santo 1722 | 180| 3/6| 1/8| 93| 50
M. Rosario 1754 X X 400 101 *50
M. S. R. Xavier 1746-55 X1 213 109 X! X
M, San lldefonso 1748-52 X1 239 0 X X1
M. Candelaria 1749-56 X 71 25 X X
Totals | 649 2,003| 2,033| 1436 926
X = Mission was nof established at that time, * = Estimates, Sources:

See Tables 3.2-3.5.

Graph 3.2, Population of Texas Missions, 1731-1774.
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Source: Tina Laural Meacham, The Population of Spanish and Mexican Texas,
1?1. 6-18'36 " Unpublished doctoral dissextation, Department of Histoty,
University of Texas at Austin, 2000, pp. 126,
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Aqueduct? What aqueduct?

Note that the Menchaca map of 1764 on the previous pages
(full map and an enlarged section) shows a dam [stop 1], an
acequia [stop 2] as part of the Mission Espada [stop 4]
irrigation system, but no aqueduct [stop 3] over Piedras
Creek, which is also not shown.

The first written description of an aqueduct here dates to
1772 and was provided by one Fray Saenz, who noted a:

"...conduit of lime and stone of thirty eight varas
[105.5 feet]; six [16.6 feet] in height; with its diamond
point, and two arches, which allow the currents of said
creek to pass..." (Cox 1999:321)

This is clearly a description of the present aqueduct.

The disparity between the map of Menchaca and the
description by Saenz has led to speculation that the present
aqueduct was built sometime between 1764 and 1772, and
that prior to then a less permanent aqueduct, something not
unlike the "flumes" or “canoas” (hollowed-out split tree trunks
supported by a wooden framework) common in northern
New Mexico, was used.
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¢Acequia o Arroyo?

Note that the maps on the previous page differ. Both show the San Antonio
River. However, on the west side of the river, Urrutia's 1767 map shows two
irrigation canals and no arroyo, whereas Menchaca's 1764 map shows an arroyo
and no canal.

This confusion goes all the way back to the early explorations and the reason
why this site was chosen for a presidio and mission.

On 5 April 1709, Fray Isidro de Espinosa, Fray Antonio de Olivaras, Captain
Pedro de Aguirre and 14 soldiers left the Presidio San Juan Bautista on the Rio
Grande (south of present-day Piedras Negras/Eagle Pass) to reconnoiter central
Texas. According to Espinosa's diary, on 13 April:

"...dimos en una acequia de agua muy poblada de arboles que
era suficiente para un pueblo, y toda llena de tomas de agua por
estar alta la acequia y colgadas las tierras pusimosle por nombre
el agua de S. Pedro." (Foster 1995:99)

"...we came to an irrigation ditch, bordered by many trees and

with water enough to supply a town. It was full of taps or sluices

of water, the earth being terraced. We named it San Pedro Spring."
(Tous 1930:5)

Some scholars (Foster 1995:99, 302; Weber 1992:163) interpret this to mean
that natives of the area not only were agricultural, but irrigated as well. Others
(e.g., Doolittle 2000) argue otherwise, in part because no crops were mentioned.
Most scholars (e.g., Almaraz 1989; de la Teja 1995) recognize it as simply a
misidentification—Espinoza saw a spring-fed stream and thought it was an
acequia; Urrutia did likewise, Menchaca didn't.

On another note, Islefios, or Canary Islanders who arrived in 1731 to found the
civil settlement, are claimed by their descendants and one scholar (Glick
1972:29) to have built the first irrigation canal in San Antonio. In fact, however,
construction on the first canal was carried out by presidio soldiers in 1718-19
(Castafeda 1936:96; Fox 1985:1).
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Military Plaza, San Antonio, Texas ca. 1840. Engraving by James D. Smillie, from the William H. Emory,
Report on the United States and Mexican Boundary Survey, 1857.
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-

The Church of San Fernando before 1867 and after 1840s remodeling. Stereo view slide collection of Albert
Steves. Source: the Witte Museum.
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Table 3.6, Estimated Population of Texas Presidios and Towns, 1731-
1774.

Placos | 17311 17411 1748 | 1751| 1756] 1763| 1769| 1772
Dates | 1740 1747| 1750 | 1785| 1762| 17681 1771| 1774
T Toxas| 300 400] 460| 450 . 500 550| 600 120
—TDéxar| 50| 500 530| 600] 660[ 750] 860 1,250
“Bahia 225 | 25 300 35| 350| 425

Orcoqui. X X X X 90 100 105 X
Xavier X X 100 100 X X X X
S. Sabd X X X X 350 350 350 X

Bucareli X X X X X X X 350
Totals| 850 1,125| 1,315| 1,400 1,900 | 2,075| 2,265 2,145

X = The presidio or settlement was not established at that time. All of

these numbers are estimates. Sources: See Table 3.1 and $1726; 51749;

51756; $1759; $1778; $1779; MAH1756; T3-T-2; T3-N-1.

Source: Tina Laural Meacham, The Population of Spanish and Mexican Texas,
1716-1836" Unpublished doctoral dissertation, Department of History,
University of Texas at Austin, 2000, pp. 128,
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Writers' Project 1938, 1939; Workers of the Writers” Program 1941.

Arreola, D.D. 1995. “Urban Ethnic Landscape ldentity,” Geographical Review 85:518-534
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Suggested Additional Readings on San Antonio
and its Cultural-Historical Landscapes

Almaraz, Felix D. The San Antonio Missions and Their System of Land Tenure.
Austin: University of Texas Press, 1989.

Arreola, Daniel D. “The Mexican American Cultural Capital,” Geographical Review Vol.
77, No. 1, pp. 17-34, 1995.

Benavides, Adan, “Sacred Space, Profane Reality: The Politics of Building a Church in
Eighteenth-Century Texas,” Southwestern Historical Quarterly, Vol. 108, No. 1,
pp. 1-33.

Cox, I. Waynne. The Spanish Acequias of San Antonio. San Antonio: Maverick
Publishing, 2005.

De La Teja, Jesus F. San Antonio de Bexar: A Community on New Spain’s Northern
Frontier. Albuquerque: University of New Mexico Press, 1995.

Glick, Thomas F. “The Old World Background of the Irrigation System of San Antonio,
Texas,” Southwestern Studies Monograph No. 35, El Paso: Texas Western
Press, The University of Texas at El Paso, 1972.

Jordan, Terry G. “Antecedents of the Long-Lot in Texas,” Annals of the Association of
American Geographers, Vol. 64, No. 1,70-86, 1974.

Porter, Charles R., Jr. Spanish Water, Anglo Water: Early Development in San
Antonio. College Station: Texas A&M University Press, 20009.

San Antonio Missions: Nomination for Inscription on the World Heritage List. 2014.

Weisman, Dale, “The Flow of History,” Texas Highways, September, pp. 22-29, 1992.
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